26850

of Canada



Bibliothèque nationale National Library du Canada

CANADIAN THESES ON MICROFICHE

HÈSES CANADIENNES **WR MICROFICHE**

NAME OF AUTHOR/NOM DE L	AUTEUR $(\mathcal{D}, \mathcal{N}, \mathcal{M}, \mathcal{M})$	•
TITLE OF THESIS/TITRE DE LA	(1) (1) (1) (2)	1 Meal
	For Srowing and Fä	ttening Bulls
UNIVERSITY/ <i>UNIVERSITÉ</i>	University of Alberta	
DEGREE FOR WHICH THESIS W. GRADE POUR LEQUEL CETTL	AS PRESENTED/ E THÈSE FUT PRÉSENTÉE M. Sea	<u> </u>
YEAR THIS DEGREE CONFERRE	D'ANNÉE D'OBTENTION DE CE GRADE 1975	

Permission is hereby granted to the NATIONAL LIBRARY QF CANADA to microfilm this thesis and to lend or sell copies of the film. The author reserves other publication rights, and neither the

thesis nor extensive extracts from it may be printed or otherwise reproduced without the author's written permission.

L'autorisation est, par la présente, accordée à la BIBLIOTHÉ-QUE NATIONALE DU CANADA de microfilmer cette thèse et de prêter ou de vendre des exemplaires du film. L'auteur se réserve les autres droits de publication; ni la

thèse ni de longs, extraits de celle-ci ne doivent être imprimés ou autrement reproduits sans l'autorisation écrite de l'auteur.

SIGNED/*SIGNÉ* DATED/DATE PERMANENT ADDRESS/*RÉSIDENCE FIXÉ* Q

THE UNIVERSITY OF ALBERTA

WHOLE-FAT RAPESEED MEAL FOR GROWING

AND FATTENING DAIRY BULLS

DONALE NORMAN MILLIGAN

BY

A THESIS

SUBMITTED TO THE FACULTY OF GRADUATE STUDIES AND RESEARCH IN PARTIAL FULFILMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DEGREE

OF MASTER OF SCIENCE

IN

ANIMAL NUTRITION

DEPARTMENT OF ANIMAL SCIENCE

EDMONTON, ALBERTA

FALL, 1975

THE UNIVERSITY OF ALBERTA

FACULTY OF GRADUATE STUDIES AND RESEARCH

The undersigned certify that they have read, and recommend to the Faculty of Graduate Studies and Research, for acceptance, a thesis entitled "Whole-Fat Rapeseed Meal for Growing and Fattening Dairy Bulls" Submitted by Donald Norman Milligan, B.Sc. (Ag) in partial fulfilment of the requirements for the degree of Master of Science in Animal Nutrition.

Supervisor

DATE

Twenty-four Holstein x Brown Swiss bulls were fed three levels of whole-fat rapeseed meal (0, 10, and 15 percent), two levels of molasses (0 and 5 percent) and two levels of alfalfa pellets (0 and 10 percent). In an attempt to establish an optimum level of rapeseed, the rapeseed, molasses and alfalfa pellets were substituted in place of barley in the rations. Digestibility studies were conducted midway through the trial to determine coefficients of apparent digestibility of dry matter, gross energy, nitrogen and ether extract.

Average daily gains obtained were 1:16, 1.20 and 1.11 kg., respectively, for the 0, 10 and 15 percent levels of whole-fat rapeseed, 1.09 and 1.22 kg., respectively for the 0 and 10 percent levels of alfalfa pellets and 1.08 and 1.39 kg., respectively, for 0 and 5 percent levels of molasses. There were no significant (P<0.05) differences among the rapeseed treatments. However, there was a significant difference in average daily gain of bulls fed the two levels of molasses and the two levels of alfalfa pellets. When the rapeseed, molasses and alfalfa pellets were fed in combination, there was no significant interaction (P<0.05) in average daily gain.

There were no significant differences (P<0.05) in daily intake of dry matter, gross energy or digestible energy

V

by bulls on any of the treatments. When rapeseed, molasses and alfalfa pellets were fed in combination, there were no significant (P<0.05) interactions for daily intake of dry matter, gross energy, or digestible energy.

The efficiency of utilization of dry matter and energy was not significantly different (P<0.05) for any of the treatments, and there was no significant interaction when the three ingredients were fed in combination.

The inclusion of tapeseed or molasses or alfalfa pellets in diets did not result in any significant differences (P<0.05) in the coefficients of apparent digestibilities of dry matter, digestible energy, crude protein or ether extract. When rapeseed, molasses and alfalfa pellets were fed in combination, no significant interactions (R<0.05) were found in the coefficients of apparent digestibility.

No significant differences (P<0.05) were obtained in carcass weight or dressing percentage, or in percentage fat and percentage lean in rib sections.

It was calculated that energy and protein in wholefat rapeseed meal had digestibility coefficients of 87.2 and 86.8%, respectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I thank Dr. L. P. Milligan, Chairman of the Department of Animal Science, for placing the facilities of the Department at my disposal. The valuable assistance and guidance, patience and companionship of Dr. C. M. Grieve, Associate Professor of Animal Nutrition, was greatly appreciated during the course of this study and in the preparation of the manuscript.

The friendly assistance and co-operation that I received from Mr. Nick Portiek, Herdsman, and the staff at the Dairy Research Unit during the experiment was certainly appreciated.

The author also wishes to thank Dr. R. T. Hardin, Associate Professor of Poultry Genetics, for his statistical advice. The advice and assistance of the technical staff of the Department of Animal Science is gratefully acknowledged. The patience, constant encouragement and assistance

I received from my wife, Pau, throughout this study was greatly appreciated and acknowledged.

Financial support was provided by the National Research Council of Canada in the form of an assistantship.

VI

TABLE OF CONTENTS	
	PAGE
INTRODUCTION	1
/ REVIEW OF LITERATURE	3
. 1. The Rapeseed Plant	3
11. Problems Associated with Feeding Rapeseed Meal	3.
A. Goitrogens	· · · · ·
B. Goitrogen in Relations to Ruminants	, 5
C. Palatability of Rapeseed	6
111. Feeding Rapeseed Meal and Rapeseed	7
A. Rapeseed Products Fed to Dairy Cows	7
B. Rapeseed Meal in Calf Rations	10
C. Rapeseed Meal in Rations for Steers and Beef Cows	11
D. Rapeseed Meal in Sheep Rations)	12
V. Fats and Oils in Livestock Rations	13
A. Fat in Calf Rations	13
B. Fat in Steer Rations	14 .
C. Fat in Rations for Sheep	17
i. Lambs on Milk Diets	17
ii. Growing and Fattening Lambs	17
J V. Whole-Fat Rapeseed Meal	18
Vl. Molasses and Alfalfa in Ruminant Rations	20
EXPERIMENTS AT THE UNIVERSITY OF ALBERTA	22
	• 22

1.

TABLE	OF	CON	JTE	NTS	

EXPERIMENTAL' DESIGN	23
Animals and Management	23
Experimental Rations	25
Digestion Studies	25
Carcass Measurements	28
Analytical Methods,	29
Statistical Analysis	29
RÉSULTS	30
VERALL COMPARISON	30
AVERAGE DAILY GAIN	32
DAILY FEED INTAKE	34
FEED UTILIZATION	35
APPARENT DIGESTIBILITY	36
SLAUGHTER AND CARCASS. DATA	40
DISCUSSION	43
CONCLUSION	46
BIBLIOGRAPHY	47
n an tha an	

PAGE

Mean Squares Obtained by Analysis of Variance APPENDIX: TABLE A. 56 (J)) • APPENDIX: TABLE B. 60 TABLE C. Data of Performance of Individual APPENDIX: Animals 62

LIST OF TABLES

•	Tąble	Description	Page
• .	1.	Formulation of Experimental Rations	26
	2.	Means for Results of the Twelve Treatments	31
	3.	Average Daily Gain	33
	4.	Average Daily Gain When Ground Rapeseed, Molasses and Alfalfa Pellets were Fed in Combination	34
. 9 99 '	5.	Daily Feed Intake	35
)	6.	Mean Daily Intake When Ground Rapeseed, Molasses and Alfalfa Pellets were Fed in Combination	37
	7.	Feed Utilization	38
	8.	Feed Utilization When Ground Rapeseed, Molasses and Alfalfa Pellets were Fed in Combination	38
	9.	Coefficients of Apparent Digestibility	39
	10.	Coefficients of Apparent Digestibilities When Ground Rapeseed, Molasses and Alfalfa Pellets were Fed in Combination	41
	11.	Slaughter and Carcass Data	42

IX

INTRODUCTION

The world innual production of rapeseed has increased from 2.8 million tons in the period of 1948-1952, to over 6 million tons in 1970. In Canada, rapeseed has become a major crop. Annual production has increased from 9,000 tons in 1948-1952 to over 1.6 million tons in 1970; production in 1973 was approximately 1.3 million tons. As a result of the increase in production, large quantities of rapeseed meal, a by-product from the oil extraction process, are available for use in animal feeds.

Undoubtedly, with increasing rapeseed production, there will be years when there will be an excess of rapeseed required for the extraction of oil. Also, since rapeseed is grown in many areas of unpredictable frosts, there may be years when large quantities of the grain will be frozen before maturity. If the seed is frozen, processors are reluctant to accept it for oil extraction. These two factors suggest the need for alternate uses of whole rapeseed, such as full-fat rapeseed

meal in feeds for livestock.

Combined with the above reasons and the fact little or no work had been done with ruminants fed full-fat rapeseed meal, a study was undertaken at the University of Alberta, using rapeseed that had been damaged by frost in the fall of 1972. Since rapeseed meal has been considered to be relatively unpalatable to ruminants, molasses and alfalfa pellets were included in some of the experimental rations to study their effect on

increasing feed intaké, which might be adversely affected by full-fat rapeseed meal alone. In addition, full-fat rapeseed meal would add fat to the diet, and molasses and alfalfa pellets have been found useful in improving utilization by ruminants of diets containing fats and oils.

REVIEW OF LITERATURE

1. The Rapeseed Plant

Rapeseed is a member of the cruciferae family (mustard is the common name for this family), of the genus Brassica. There are two types of rapeseed grown in Canada; <u>Brassica napus</u> and <u>Brassica campestris</u>, commonly called Argentine rape and Polish rape, respectively (Downey, 1965). <u>Brassica napus</u> has a greater potential in yield of seed and oil, but has a longer maturation period (Downey and Bolton, 1961), as compared with <u>Brassica campestris</u>. For this meason, <u>Brassica campestris</u> comprises approximately 80% of Canada's total production of rapeseed (Downey, 1965).

11. Problems Associated with Feeding Rapeseed Meal

A. Goitrogens

Rapeseed, like many other plants of the Brassica genus, contains glucosinolates. These glucosinolates, when hydrolysed in the presence of the enzyme, myrosinase (also present in rapeseed), produce isothiocyanates, goitrin and nitriles (Bell and Belzile, 1965). In <u>Brassica napus</u>, progoitrin (2-hydroxy-4-pentenyl glucosinolate) is the predominant glucosinolate, while in <u>Brassica campestris</u>, gluconapin (3butenyl glucosinolate) predominates (Clandinin <u>et al.</u>, 1959; Wetter and Craig, 1959; Appleqvist and Ohlson, 1972).

The effect of progoitrin has been studied most because it has been implicated in the goitrogenicity of rapeseed meal. / Progoitrin is hydrolyzed by the enzyme myrosigase, to

់ា

yield 2-hydroxy-3-butenyl isothiocyanate, which is unstable and breaks down to 5-vinyl-2-oxazolidinethione (goitrin). Goitrin has been shown to be the principal compound responsible for thyroid enlargement and depression of thyroid function in animals (Greer, 1962) and chicks (Clandinin <u>et al</u>., 1966).

The first work in isolation of the goitrogenic properties in rapeseed was done by Kennedy and Purves in 1941. They found enlarged thyroids in rats that were fed rapeseed meal. Similar findings were reported in 1948 (Blakely and Anderson) from a study in which turkey poults were fed a ration containing 20% rapeseed oilmeal. Clandinin (1961) noted that chicks fed expeller-processed rapeseed meal had a two-fold Similar results were indrease in thyroid to bodyweight ratio. obtained in further studies using rations containing 5% Argen-From this, the concluded the) tine rape or 15% Polish rape. levels of goitrogens were different in the two varieties of rapeseed. This was also shown by Klain et al. (1956), who reported that Argentine rape (B. napus) had a higher content of goitrogenic compounds than Polish rape (B. campestris). The major gostrogenic compound was found to be 5-viny1-2oxazolidinethione (Astwood et al., 1949; Carroll, 1949; and Wetter and Craig, 1959).

It has been shown that the goitrogenic properties of rapeseed meal are associated with growth depression in. monogastric species (Carroll, 1949). The goitrin apparently inhibits production of the hormone thyroxine, which is necessary. for growth, and results in impaired function of the thyroid gland. Belzile, Bell and Wetter (1963) found that the addition of the enzyme myrosinase did not increase the toxicity of rapeseed meal. Thus, they concluded that the seed contained sufficient myrosinase to hydrolyze the glucosinolates that were present. They also reported that there was a depression in growth of 25% when mice were fed rapeseed meal. Bell (1965) showed that 5% rapeseed meal in the ration of growing pigs resulted in depressed rate of gain.

Clandinin, Bayly and Caballero (1966) added 0.15% of 5-vinyl-2-oxazolidinethione to chick rations and found depressed growth rates and thyroid enlargements in the chicks. It was also reported that the chicks achieved a physiological equilibrium, since normal growth took place after 4 weeks on the diets. Similar results were found by Matsumato, Itoh and Akida (1968). In 1972, Akiba and Matsumato reported an experiment where they withdrew the goitrogen, 5-vinyl-2-oxazolidinethione, from chick rations following) a 21-day féeding period. Within two days the thyroid was functioning normally, whereas thyroid function had been abnormal prior to withdrawal of the goitrogen. They also noted that the enlarged thyroid condition persisted for longer periods following the withdrawal from goitrogen even though the thyroid was.functioning normally.

B. Goitrogen in Relation to Ruminants

There have been few reports of adverse effects of goitrogens on ruminants by feeding rapeseed meal. Research in

Scotland (Russell, 1967), showed that lambs grazing on forage rape (<u>B. napus</u>) had significantly larger thyroids than those grazed on grass. Work in France (Grenet, 1970) has been reported in which rations containing rapeseed meal were compared to rations containing linseed meal. Ewes fed the rapeseed meal rations had significantly heavier thyroid glands as compared to those fed linseed meal rations.

In a review by Bell (1955), it was noted that work in Montana and Lethbridge failed to show any ill effects from feeding rapeseed meal to ruminants. Appelquist and Ohlson (1972) cited work by Virtanen, Kreula and Kiezvaara (1963), who fed 5-vinyl-2-oxazolidinethione and its precursor to a cow and discovered only trace amounts of oxazolidinethione in the milk. They concluded that either progoitrin was not hydrolysed in the rumen or that any oxazolidinethione that was formed was destroyed.

Bezeau <u>et al</u>. (1960) found that levels of 10, 20 and 30% rapeseed meal in rations fed to ewes had no enlargement effect on the thyroid. The difference between reports may be due to a difference in varieties of rapeseed fed. Saskatchewan research showed average levels of oxazolidinethione in Bronowski, Target and Nuggett varieties of rapeseed meal were 0.20, 10.40 and 8.90 mg/g, respectively (Bell, Young and Downey, 1971).

C. Palatability of Rapeseed

Ruminants have been shown to reduce their feed intake when rapeseed meal levels are increased beyond 10 percent of the

diet (Ingalls <u>et al</u>., 1972), but cattle will adapt to consuming rapeseed meal after a period of time (Appelqvist and Ohlson, 1972; Virtanen <u>et al</u>., 1963; Grenet, 1970; Bezeau <u>et al</u>., 1960; and Ingalls <u>et al</u>., 1968). Schwarze (1948) reported that the unpalatability effect of rapeseed meal was due in part to a bitter compound known as sinapin. Clandinin (1961) studied sinapin and found it had no growth depressing effects even though it is a thiocyanate.

Part of the reduced palatability of rapeseed meal could be due to tannins. Clandinin and Heard (1968) showed levels of quantannic acid to be 3.03% in rapeseed meal. Vohra, Kratzer and Joslyn (1966) showed decreases in feed intake in chicks from 320 gm/15 days, with no tannic acid, to 120 gm/15 days, at a level of 3% tannic acid in the diet.

111. Feeding Rapeseed Meal and Rapeseed

Less research attention has been directed towards using rapeseed products in rations for ruminants as compared to studies with poultry and swine. Besides the effect on palatability at higher levels, rapeseed meal has not the adverse effects on growth rate in ruminants that has been observed with monogastric species.

A. Rapeseed Products Fed to Dairy Cows

Jarl (1951) fed rapeseed oil cake to milking cows at levels of 0, 25, 50 and 60% of the concentrate ration. The cows fed the higher levels of rapeseed cake (50 and 60%) had a lower milk production (0.5 kg less/day) than those fed the rations

.7

with lower levels of rapeseed. He also reported that as the level of rapeseed increased the percent of fat in milk decreased, but only slightly. He noted that in order for rapeseed meal to be palatable, it had to be fed dry. Both Nordfeldt (1958) and Homb, Orud and Walden, (1961) found that supplemental rapeseed meal increased milk yield, but fat percentage of milk decreased. In neither case was milk flavour affected., Whiting (1965) cited work by Seale (1952) who obtained results indicating that the feeding of rapeseed increased milk production ' slightly with the butterfat level remaining the same as that with the control linseed meal ration.

Asplund (1961, 1962) found that when rapeseed meal was substituted for linseed meal, dairy cows rejected the ration during the first week it was fed. He felt that the rejection was not due to the rapeseed alone as the rations were initially ground and this resulted in the cows licking the grain. The licking caused the grain to become wet and unpalatable. To alleviate this, the diets were coarsely rolled. Milk production in both studies varied with the levels of rapeseed used. Cows fed 20% rapeseed meal produced less milk than those fed 10% rapeseed meal and they declined in milk production twice as fast as the rest. The cows fed 10% rapeseed meal produced as much milk as cows receiving control diets. There were no adverse milk flavours attributed to the rapeseed. Witt, Huth and Hartman (1959) used a ration that contained 10-15%

rapeseed meal (25% of the concentrate mixture). Their results

showed an increase in milk production of about 0.35 kg per day. In a long term experiment, Homb, Orud and Walden (1961) compared cows fed 10 and 15% rapeseed meal and cows fed linseed meal, together with various levels of fat in the rapeseed meal They reported that between the rations there were rations. no significant differences in milk production, milk fat levels or weight gains by the cows. Similar results were noted (Chomyszym and Beza, 1965) when rapeseed was fed at levels as high as 50% of the concentrate diet of milk cows. This work showed inconclusive results in terms of milk fat content, but there was a tendency for lower values with rapeseed meal as compared with the control rations. Grenet (1970) observed that when rapeseed meal was toasted, after extraction, accept-⁹ability by dairy cows increased. He also noted that the nutritive value of the rapeseed meal was not adversely affected by toasting and the utilization of nitrogen was slightly increased. A study was conducted to determine the results of using rapeseed meal and urea, singly and in combination, on the ad libitum grain intake of dairy cows (Ingalls, Seale and McKirdy, 1968). The results indicated that grain consumption was decreased when 12 to 13% rapeseed meal was used in place of soybean meal, but there was no effect on milk production, or milk protein. Grieve (1973) studied the effect of substituting urea and rapeseed meal for soybean meal in dairy rations. It was found that a combination of 8.5% rapeseed meal and 0.75% urea could be used in place of soybean meal with no decrease

9.

in feed intake. Similar results have been reported elsewhere (Ingalls and Waldern, 1972).

Rapeseed Meal in Calf Rations

It was reported in experiments with calves (Ingalls and Waldern, 1972) that the digestible energy value of rapeseed meal was equal to that of soybean meal, and there was little Wifference between the digestibilities of the protein. With calf starters containing 20% rapeseed meal in place of soybean meal, the calves had similar weight gains and feed intake. However, at 30%, rapeseed meal, feed intake and weight gains were depressed. Bell and Devlin (1972) reported that calves fed diets low in roughage, and with the concentrate containing up to 50% rapeseed meal, derived about 2370 kcal of metabolizable energy per kg of rapeseed meal (10% moisture basis). This metabolizable energy value was compared to soybean meal having a value of 2159 kcal of metabolizable energy per kg of meal. It was also reported that when comparing rapeseed meal and soybean meal, growing calves gained slightly better with soybean meal (1.03 kg/day vs. 0.96 kg/day). Whiting (1965), in a review, cited work by Clark and Bezeau (1964), comparing linseed meal to expeller-extracted rapeseed meal and solvent-extracted Initially, calves fed the rapeseed meal rations rapeseed meal. did not consume as much feed as those fed linseed meal. However, at the end of sixteen weeks, their feed consumption and rate of gain was the same as those fed the linseed meal rations. In an experiment in Chile, Latrille and Ferguson (1968) compared

lucerne hay, rapeseed meal and dried beet pulp in concentrate rations for growing calves. Hay was fed at levels of 20% and 30%, the rapeseed meal at a level of 25% and beet pulp at a level of 25%. Another group received 15% rapeseed meal and 20% beet pulp. There were no significant differences obtained among any of the groups. Recently it has been reported (Grieve, 1974) that rapeseed meal and urea, or rapeseed meal alone, can be used as a replacement or in substitution for soybean meal in rations fed to calves.

C. Rapeseed Meal, in Rations for Steers and Beef Cows

Whiting (1965), noted that Seale (1952) in Manitoba had fed rations containing rapeseed meal to steers for 140 days. Three rations were compared, containing 10% linseed, rapeseed or mustard seed meal as the protein supplement. Results showed that the steers fed rations containing rapeseed or mustard seed meals rejected their feed initially, but after a time, the animals became accustomed to the rations and consumption was as good as with linseed meal. The steers fed linseed meal gained somewhat better than those on the other two rations (0.12 kg more daily). Burkitt et al., (1954) from Montana, conducted a study comparing linseed meal and rapeseed meal as supplements for low protein roughages for pregnant beef cows, yearling steers and calves. As others have reported, this study found the animals consumed less feed when rapeseed was used due to the palatability factor. However, no differences were noted in overall performance. Bell and Devlin (1972)

reported a study in which a diet containing 10.5% rapeseed. meal was compared with one containing 7.5% soybean meal and with a control ration of barley, with no protein supplement. The results indicated no differences in weight gains and feed conversion. Whiting (1965) cited work from the University of Alberta in which it was noted rapeseed meal provided more efficient gains when compared to rapeseed screenings and rapeseed meal plus urea. The rapeseed screenings gave the most economical gain, but it was not certain that this would always be the case.

D. Rapeseed Meal in Sheep Rations

Bezeau, Slen and Whiting (1960) conducted two experiments on feeding rapeseed meal to pregnant and lactating ewes. In the first study, the rapeseed meal was at 10 and 20% levels and in the second, levels of 10, 20 and 30% rapeseed meal were used. In each case, linseed meal was used as a control ration. In both experiments ewes receiving 10 or 20% rapeseed meal consumed equally as much feed as the ewes getting linseed meal, and there were no differences in weight gains, lamb birth weights, growth of lambs or wool production. However, the ewes fed the 30% rapeseed meal ration consumed less than those in the control * group, their weight gains were less, their lambs lighter at birth and their wool growth poorer than the control group. Burkitt (1951) observed palatability problems when rapeseed meal was fed with grass hay. It was noted that digestibility of the ration was not affected significantly by the addition of

rapeseed meal.

1V.

Fats and Oils in Livestock Rations

In 1929, Burr and Burr found that diets completely lacking in fat caused certain abnormalities. These included skin problems, poor growth rate and reproductive problems. It was concluded from their study that fat was a necessary component of an animal's diet. This was demonstrated to be true for dairy calves specifically (Lambert et al., 1954). It was later discovered that it was not necessarily fat that was essential, but rather sts components, namely fatty acids. Not all fatty acids were required; only a certain number were essential to animal diets (Burr and Burr, 1930). Maynard and Loosli (1969) indicated that ruminants have a requirement for the fatty acids arachidonic, linoleic, and linolenic, but primarily for linoleic, which agrees with studies by Lambert et al. (1954). In addition to the essential fatty acids contained in it, fat serves as a carrier for fat soluble vitamins (vitamins A, D, E and K), promotes the absorption of vitamin A and carotene, and makes the use of carbohydrate energy more efficient (Russell et al., 1942).

13

A. Fat in Calf Rations

Newborn calves have difficulty digesting vegetable oil. Adams <u>et al</u>. (1959 a, b) studied growth rate in calves fed milk rations in which butterfat was substituted with vegetable oils. When vegetable oils were used in place of butterfat, growth rates of calves were reduced, they suffered diarrhea, were more susceptible to pneumonia, and utilized feed poorly. The calves fed rations with vegetable oil, excreted much of the fecal fat in the form of soaps, whereas this was not the case with calves fed skim milk or milk containing butter oil. Adams <u>et al</u>. (1959 c) noted that if rations were prepared daily rather than weekly, diarrhea decreased and digestibility increased. Chandler <u>et al</u>. (1968) studied the effect of adding 10% lard to starter rations for calves. They observed that feed intake, growth rate, and digestibility of dry matter and energy were all depressed by the addition of lard.

3. Fat in Steer Rations

It was shown that steers fed high levels of fat (7,1% of the diet) had improved feed efficiency over steers fed low levels of fat (2.8% of the diet) (Willey <u>et al.</u>, 1952). The rate of gains and carcass grades were not significantly different in any of the groups. In accordance with other findings, they reported that the absorption of vitamin A and carotene increased (Bender and Maynard, 1932; Russell <u>et al.</u>, 1942 and Parham, Colby and Riggs, 1950). By adding 4% tallow, or 4% hydrolized vegetable oil plus animal fat, to high concentrate rations, digestibilities of ration components were not affected (Esplin <u>et al.</u>, 1963). Fecal soaps increased as fat Tevel increased, but the absolute increase was small. Thus they concluded that the loss did not represent a major energy loss from added fats. They noted that 4% fat could be added to a fattening ration, without depressing the utilization of ration

components and with good utilization of the added fat.

Roberts and McKirdy (1964) conducted a study to determine the effects of sunflower seed oil, rapeseed oil and animal tallow as dietary sources of fat in feedfot rations. They noted no significant differences in rates of gain. However, the animals fed sunflower seed oil gained 0.2 kg more weight daily and consumed 7% more feed daily than the animals on the rest of the treatments. The digestibilities of dry matter and energy were not affected by these treatments. The sunflower seed oil resulted in higher crude fat excretion and lower crude fat digestibility. The authors suggested that the cause was due to higher amounts of linoleic acid in the sunflower seed oil, which resulted in the formation of salts in the rumen, which were poorly digested. It was concluded that these three products could be used at 5% of the ration with satisfactory results in fattening steers.

A study was conducted to observe the effects of adding urea and fat to feedlot rations (Bradley <u>et al.</u>, 1966). The rations contained 1.5% urea and 5% fat together and singly. In addition, corn distillers dried grains with solubles were added to the rations to determine if the results concurred with those of Grainger <u>et al.</u>, (1961), who found that the addition of corn distillers dried grains with solubles had a beneficial effect on cellulose digestion when 7% corn oil was added to the diet. It was observed that as urea and fat

were added singly or together the rate of gain was depressed, with the greatest depression occurring when the two were in combination. The reason for the depression in rate of gain was due to reduced feed intake. The corn distillers dried grains had no effect on their results. The reduced intake and gain was in contradiction to results reported by Wise, Bluner and Barrick (1963), who found that intake decreased with the addition of urea and fat to feedlot rations, but rate of gain was not depressed. The reason for the difference in results would seem to be that higher levels of urea and fat were used in the earlier work. Bradley et al. (1966) found the addition of fat caused significant decreases in the digestibilities of dry matter, energy and nitrogen-free extract. When urea was added, the digestibility of crude protein was reduced. The addition of corn distillers dried grains did not improve the digestibility coefficients. Similar results were reported by Thompson, Bradly and Little, They observed that when urea and fat were included (1967). in the diets, animals fed pelleted rations had better performance than those fed meal rations. The conclusion was that, the urea was released slower in the pelleted feed. Hatch et al., (1972) also found a depression in feedlot performance when fat and urea were added to rations. Although it was found that digestibilities of dry matter and energy were lowered with 3% fat and 1.3% urea in the rations, this was not the case with other treatments. They also noted that the

animals adjusted to the rations in terms of fleed intake. The addition of calcium above N.R.C. requirements did not improve performance when fat was included in the diets.

Fat in Rations for Sheep

i. Lambs on Milk Diets

Lambs fed high-fat milk replacers (30% fat) were shown to increase their weight gains and feed efficiency over suckling lambs and lambs fed low-fat milk replacers (Welch, 1962). In 'a study with lambs fed corn oil or tallow in milk substitutes (Bouchard and Brisson, 1970); it was noted that the lambs with tallow in their ration berformed twice as well as those fed corn oil or whole milk. The performance of the control group of suckling lambs ranged between those fed tallow and corn oil. The digestion coefficients seemed to indicate the source of fat in the milk had no effect on the coefficients for dry matter, crude protern, crude fat and energy.

ii. Growing and Fattening Lambs

Davison and Woods (1963) studied the effect of adding corn oil and calcium to rations for growing and fattening lambs. When alfalfa was the source of roughage, corn oil improved the performance of the fattening lambs. However, with other roughages, the addition of corn oil, stabilized white grease and/or calcium resulted in no improvement in performance. This was also shown by Davison (1961). He found feed eff piency was improved with the addition of 7%

fat to a ration containing alfalfa as the source of roughage, but not when other sources of roughage were used in the' The conclusion was that the improvements noted were ration. due to an improved cellulose digestion in ruminants. If tallow is hydrogenated, its digestibility is increased (MacLeod and Buchanan-Smith, 1972), as it resists dispersion, hydrolysis in the rumen and solubilization in the small intes-Using high roughage and high concentrate rations with tine. and without added fat, Johnson and McClure (1972) found lambs fed high concentrate rations didn't gain as well as those fed high roughage rations with added fat. However, high concentrate rations proved better than rations with high roughage and no added fat. They noted that the addition of 6% fat had no effect on gains, but the addition of 8% fat decreased gains. Fat additives did not affect the digestibilities of any of the ration components.

V. Whole-Fat Rapeseed Meal

Very limited research has been carried out with whole-fat rapeseed meal. Olomu (1974) fed raw whole-fat rapeseed meal to chicks and found that they had lower gains than those fed meal that had been heated in an autoclave (120° C for 10 minutes). The chicks fed the raw rapeseed meal were found to have larger thyroids and leaner carcasses than those

fed control rations. Chicks fed autoclaved rapeseed meal had carcass weights between those in the control group and those fed raw rapeseed meal. The use of ground rapeseed (whole-fat)

in the ration was found to cause a reduction in the utilization of dietary energy when compared with the control group. This in turn caused the metabolizable energy value of the rapeseed ration to be lower than that of the control ration. In laying hen rations, the inclusion of 5, 10 and 15% wholefat rapeseed meal did not affect egg production or egg quality significantly. There was a slight decrease in egg production as the level of rapeseed increased. There were significant increases in mortality rates due to fatty liver syndrome, and thyroid weights increased as the level of rapeseed meal increased.

In studies at the University of Manitoba and the University of Alberta (Bowland and Bell, 1972), it was reported that levels of up to 10% whole-fat rapeseed meal could be used in diets for pigs from 8 kg liveweight to market weight. Whole-fat rapeseed had a calculated DE of 5360 kcal/kg on an "as-fed" basis.

In work at the University of Guelph, (Clandinin, Robblee and Slinger, 1972); it was determined that full-fat rapeseed meal contained 4400 kcal of metabolizable energy per kg. Heat treatment of whole raw rapeseed improved weight gain and feed utilization by chicks. The primum response was obtained by heating at 750° F for 10 seconds, probably because the high temperature inactivated the myrosinase in the seed. Van Etten <u>et al</u>. (1966) found that myrosinase activity was destroyed when rapeseed meal was heated at a temperature of 140 to 160° C for 12 hours.

VI. Molasses and Alfalfa in Ruminant Rations

Scott (1953) concluded that molasses increased the palatability of low quality roughages and provided a source of highly digestible energy. He also concluded that molasses reduced the dustiness of ground feeds and had a tonic or laxative effect. Bell and Devlin (1972) reported that molasses could be used to offset the unpalatability of rapeseed meal in rations for ruminants.

Molasses is essentially an energy source and the main constituents are sugars. The sweet taste makes it appealing to most species, and it reduces dust (Church and Pond, 1974).

It has been noted that ruminants on dry feed are less tolerant of high fat levels than are monogastric animals (Church and Pond, 1974). Concentrations of more than 7% are apt to cause reduced feed intake, and digestive disturbances. Klosterman <u>et al</u>. (1953) noted that alfalfa ash and molasses fermentation solubles, or a trace mineral mixture improved feed intake and utilization of oil-containing rations for fattening cattle. Similar results with alfalfa ash were obtained by Ward et al. (1957).

Combinations of alfalfa and molasses are palatable and are often used in limited amounts in rations for ruminants to increase feed consumption (Morrison, 1958). Work at Nebraska (Klopfenstein and Schneider, 1973) indicated that the

addition of 10% alfalfa pellets was the optimum level in an all-concentrate ration, as measured by feed intake, rate of gain and freedom from digestive disturbances.

•

EXPERIMENTS AT THE UNIVERSITY OF ALBERTA

INTRODUCTION

In the fall of 1972, rapeseed crops in scattered areas of central and northern Alberta were touched with frost. When the seed from these crops was harvested, it was not readily accepted for trade by the usual market channels. Consequently, it seemed desirable to study its value as a feed for ruminants. Because of its content of protein and oil, the seed could be considered to provide supplemental protein and energy to a diet.

It was appreciated that ground whole-fat rapeseed might accentuate unpalatability problems associated with rapeseed meal fed to ruminants, and that the oil might reduce feed utilization as is sometimes the result when corn oil is added to the diet. Since molasses and alfalfa have been shown to improve feed intake and feed utilization by ruminants fed diets containing oil, it seemed desirable to study their effects on diets containing whole-fat rapeseed meal.

Consequently, an experiment was carried out to study the effects of adding whole-fat rapeseed meal alone, and in combinations with alfalfa pellets and molasses, to high-concentrate barley-based rations fed to growing and fattening ruminants. Studies were carried out on growth rate and feed consumption by the animals, digestibility of the rations, and carcass data and composition of the animals at slaughter.

EXPERIMENTAL DESIGN

The experimental design chosen was factorial, with three levels of full-fat rapeseed meal, two levels of molasses and two levels of alfalfa pellets, for a total of twelve treatments as follows:



Two bulls were used for replication in each of the 2 treatments. Eight bulls were used on each level of rapeseed meal; and twelve bulls were used for each level of molasses and alfalfa pellets.

Animals and Management

Twenty-four Holstein x Brown Swiss crossbred bulls were assigned to the various treatments on the basis of age

The bulls were raised from birth at the Univand weight. ersity of Alberta Dairy Cattle Research Unit. The initial weights of the bulls ranged from 68 to 339 kg. Sixteen were available at the start of the experiment and eight were added as they reached two and three months of age. Since calves are born in the dairy herd throughout the year, a large discrepancy in range of initial age and weight seemed inevitable. However, since this was primarilyoa test of feed intake and possible side-effects, a range in weight and age was not considered to be detrimental to the experiment. The animals were housed in the Dairy Cattle Research Unit and were tied in individual stalls over slatted flooring. Fresh water, cobalt-iodized salt and calcium phøsphate were available free-choice.

The experimental rations were initially offered to the bulls on the basis of 1.5 percent of the animal's body weight, in two equal feedings on the first day. Then, each bull was increased by 0.2 kg of feed per feeding until fullfeed was reached in about 7 days. The rations were fed in equal portions at 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. daily. All feed and unconsumed feed was weighed and recorded daily.

The bulls were weighed approximately every four weeks throughout the trial. They were weighed in the morning before feeding and after water had been withheld for three hours.

Experimental Rations

Twelve rations were formulated (Table 1). The basal ration was composed of barley with mineral and vitamin supplements (to supply 8800 I.U. of vitamin A, 1450 I.U. of vitamin D, and 9 I.U. of vitamin E per kg of ration). This was a high concentrate ration similar to those previously used in the Dairy Cattle Research Unit (Malmberg, 1972; Moon, 1972), and was considered to be borderline or deficient in crude protein for the animals in the experiment. Ground whole-fat rapeseed meal, molasses and alfalfa pellets were added, as required, in place of barley.

In order to crack the rapeseed hulls, the rapeseed was mixed with barley in the ratio of 3:1 (w/w) and ground in a portable New Holland hammermill mixer unit, using a 3/8⁴ screen and 1000 rpm. All rations were mixed in the portable mixer to prevent contamination of equipment in the feed mill through the use of whole-fat rapeseed meal.

The variety of rapeseed was Zephyr, a cultivar of <u>Brassica napus</u>, and it is regarded to be a "low erucic acid rapeseed" (LEAR type). The rapeseed was obtained from a farm at Spruce Grove, Alberta. The seed contained 0.3 to 0.6 percent oxazolidinethione and 0.01% erucic acid.

Digestion Studies

Digestion studies were conducted on each of the twenty-four bulls. The trials were carried out with six animals each time.

Table 1. Formulation of Experimental Rations

												•
Ingredients kg	%	08 Rapeseed	eed		 	0% Rape	eseed		•	15% Ra	Rapeseed	а
	A*	₩ £	ť	* D	A	щ	ບ	D	A	щ	U	0
Barley Rolled	98	63	88	83	88	83	78	73	е С	78	73	68
Ground Rapeseed	0	0	0	0	10	τo	10	10	15	15	15	15
Wet Molasses	0	S	0	ъ	0	ъ	. 0	۰ مى	0	ம	0	
Alfalfa Pellets	0	Ô	10	10	0	, 0	10	10	0	0	10	10
Trace-min Salt**	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	ں 0
Ground Limestone	1.0	л. Л.	л. о	1.0	1.0	л. О	1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0		•
Vitamin Supplement**	** 0.5	0.5	0.5.	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.5	•
Tota1	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	100	
Calculated Analvsis****	***		4					4		V a		
Dry Matter, %	86.5	86.0	86. 9	86.4	87.0	86.5 .5	87.5	87.0	87.2	86.7	87 7	87 7
Crude Protein, &	11.7	11.4	11.9	11.6	12.5	<u>ن</u> ا	•					•
Digestible Energy (Mcal/kg)	2.96 2	7.96 2.94		7 87	9 L C	-	ר ה	- -		· · ·	1	
) 	# 	0 • •		•	α-Τα Γ	3.12	3.LU	ر. ال	ч. 29	3.24	Э.22 ,
	*A 1S	*À is ration containing	a conta	ining	0% Molas	Ses	and 0\$	Alfalfa	a Pellets	ets		
	, B	is ration containing	a conta	aining	5% Molas	Ses		Alfalf	р.	lets		
	C C	ratio	ration containing	ining	0% Molas	Ses	10	8 Alfalfa	Ъ	lets	•	••
	D is	ratio	ration containing	ining	5% Molas	s S S	and 10%	Alf	alfa Pel	ellets		
	**Trac 0.03	*Trace mineral 0.033% copper,	ral Salt Per, 0.0		contained L& iodine,	0.4% 2 0.004%	žinc, 0.] 18 cobalt	L68 and	iron, 0. 196.58 s	0.12% ma sodium	manganese m chlorid	e, de,
	***Vitamin Supplement D and 9 I.U. of vit	us uim 1.1 6 b	oplemer J. of v	2011 (11) -	supplied 8800 amin E per kg	800 I.U kg of	• ਮ	of vitamin.A, ation.	. H	450 I.U	. of	vitamin

2'6

Cont'd.

Formulation of Experimental Rations Cont'd Table 1.

and 11.9% crude protein; molasses contained 77.0% dry matter and 6.7% crude protein. Digestible energy values (NRC, 1971; Bowland and Bell 1972). used in calculations were 5.36, 3.02, 2.68 and 2.29 Mcal/kg for 20.3% crude rapeseed, barley, molasses and alfalfa pellets, respectively, on the alfalfa pellets contained 90.8% dry matter and 13.8% protein and 39.6% ether extract; barley contained 86.2% dry matter ***On the as-fed basis rapeseed contained 91.6% dry matter, crude protein; as-fed basis.
The fecal collection was based on collection bags developed by Malmberg (1972), Moon (1972) and Noller <u>et al</u>. (1959). The polyethylene bags used in this study measured 40 cm by 85 cm and were put in canvas bags strapped to a harness. The total feces were weighed and recorded twice daily at 8:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. throughout the five-day trial. Five percent of the feces collected each time was retained and frozen. At the end of the trial the composite sample from each bull was dried in a forced-draught despatch oven, at 70° C, for 72 hours and then pulverized in a Waring blender. The samples were then stored for later analysis. Samples of the experimental rations were collected daily during digestion trials, composited, ground in a Wiley laboratory mill and retained for later analysis.

Samples of unconsumed portions of the rations were collected daily before fresh feed was offered during the digestion trials. This feed was dried as a composite sample in a forced-draught despatch oven at 70° C for 72 hours. It was then ground in a Wiley laboratory mill and retained for later analysis.

Carcass Measurements

Farm weights of all the bulls were recorded before they were trucked to Gainers Packing Plant for slaughter. Feed and water were withheld for a 12 hour period before weighing. The viscera were examined at slaughter and abnormalities recorded. Warm carcass weights were recorded and carcasses were

28.

graded by Canada Department of Agriculture standards twentyfour hours after slaughter. The 9-10-11 rib section was removed from the right side of each carcass. The tenth rib section was then separated from the standing rib by a standardization procedure described by Malmberg (1972). The standardized tenth rib was physically separated into separable fat, lean and bone.

Analytical Methods

Dry matter, crude protein and ether extract were determined on feed, unconsumed feed and feces by AOAC (1965) methods. Gross energy of feed, unconsumed feed and fecal samples was determined by combustion in a Parr oxygen bomb calorimeter. All samples were combusted at 25 atmospheres and only the unconsumed feed samples were pelleted to facilitate complete combustion.

Statistical Analysis

An I.B.M. 360/67 computer in the Department of Computing Services at the University of Alberta was used in analysis of the data. Analyses of variance were computed using the University of Alberta Computing Services program C.S. 2834 (ANOFPR) written by Weingardt (1973). Mean squares are presented in Appendix Table A.

RESULTS

OVERALL COMPARISON

the

alfa

and

the ad

apparer

Means of daily gain, feed consumed per day and feed consumed per unit gain by the bulls in the twelve treatments are shown in Table 2. No statistically significant (P<0.05) interactions were obtained in the overall comparison.

The lowest average daily gain and highest consumption of feed per unit gain was obtained with the basal ration that had no rapeseed, molasses or alfalfa pellets. The addition of 10 or 15 percent whole-fat rapeseed meal, in place of barley, appeared to improve rate of gain and efficiency of feed conversion. There was no indication that whole-fat rapeseed meal had any adverse effect on daily feed consumption.

The addition of molasses or alfalfa pellets improved daily gain and efficiency of feed conversion as much as did

> f rapeseed. When added together, molasses and s improved daily dry matter intake, rate of gain y of feed conversion. The beneficial effects of of both molasses and alfalfa pellets were also th rations containing 10 or 15% rapeseed.

With increasing age and weight, protein requirements decline from 14% to 12% (NRC, 1971). Moon (1972) and Malmberg (1972), d some difficulty in clearly demonstrating the need for supplemental protein. In this experiment, the barley contained 12% crude protein, thus protein intakes would have

			31
ſ.	15 · 10 10	182 152 220 1.23	ο ν ο
•	12 10 10	153 152 248 1.12	v 4 0 0
	νου I	171 150 262 1.00	ν. ν.
ր Մ Ա	15 0 0	210 177 192 1.08	ν ν 4. Ο
Treatments	10 °	161 160 234 234	र्ग
	0 0 0 I	211 194 192 1.12	0 4 • •
the Twelve	0 ທ ¹ 0	188 152 220 1.23	0 7 • •
	10 0 0	172 170 262 1.08	ν, ν, ν,
Means for Results of	0 2 0 1	178 147 234 1.39	o o n
f f n n s	0	206 172 262 1.08	s s
Me A	0 2 0	156 134 234 1.15	ທຸດ ຈັ ຕ
Table	000	233 1.02 1.02	0 9 9 9
Ĕ	Level of Rapeseed Level of Molasses Level of Alfalfa	Initial Wt. kg Initial Age, days Days on Test Daily Gain, kg	Feed/Day, kg D.M. D.M./Unit Gain

been adequate in the control ration over a large part of the feeding period.

In the remainder of the sections on results and discussion, data will be confined to the main effects due to rapeseed, molasses and alfalfa. Data of the performance of individual animals are shown in Appendix Table C. AVERAGE DAILY GAIN

The animals fed the 0, 10, and 15% levels of fullfat rapeseed meal gained an average of 1.16, 1.20 and 1.11 kg per day, respectively (Table 3). These rates of gain were not significantly different (P<0.05). The ether extract contents of the diets in this study containing 0, 10 and 15% rapeseed were 1.59, 4.67 and 6.78% respectively. Dyer <u>et al</u>. (1957) found no increase in gain when 7% fat was included in feedlot diets, whereas Erwin <u>et al</u>. (1956) found an increase in rate of gain with the inclusion of 5% fat.

When 5% molasses was included in the diet, there was a significant (P<0.05) increase in the daily gain, as compared with no molasses in the diet. The animals fed the diet with molasses gained 0.15 kg per day (14%) more than the ones fed no molasses.

The inclusion of 10% alfalfa pellets in the diets resulted in a significant (P<0.05) increase in rate of gain over diets with no alfalfa pellets. The average increase was 0.13 kg per day (12%).

The results of feeding rapeseed and molasses together

showed no significant interaction (P<0.05) (Table 4) for rate of gain, although a trend appeared. Without molasses, the addition of rapeseed tended to increase rate of gain whereas with molasses the addition of 15% rapeseed tended to decrease rate of gain.

Treatment % Level of 1	Diet Average Daily Gain (kg)	Number of Observations
Ground Rapeseed 0	1.16 ^a	8
Ground Rapeseed 10	0 1.20 ^a	8
Ground Rapeseed 15	1.11 ^a	8
Molasses 0	1.08 ^b	12
Molasses 5	1.23 ^C	12
Alfalfa Pellets 0	1.09 ^d -	12
Alfalfa Pellets 10	1.22 ^e	12

Table 3. Average Daily Gain (kg)

a,b,c,

Means in the same group followed by a common superscript are not significantly different (P<0.05).

The combination of alfalfa pellets and rapeseed resulted in no significant interaction (P<0.05) in rate of gain (Table 4). Without alfalfa pellets, the addition of 10% rapeseed tended to increase rate of gain, whereas there was no effect with alfalfa pellets in the diet. The addition of alfalfa pellets tended to increase rate of gain with 0, 10 and

33.

15% rapeseed rations. Davison and Woods (1963) found an increase in animal performance when fat was included in diets with alfalfa as the roughage source.

Table 4. Average Daily Gain (kg) when Ground Rapeseed, Molasses and Alfalfa Pellets were Fed in Combination

Treatment	<pre>% Level of</pre>	Diet	Molass	n ses	Alfalfa	Pellets
n			0	5	0	10
Rapeseed	0		1.05	1.27	1.08	.1.24
	10		1.10	1.30	1.16	1.24
	15		1.10	1.12	1.04	1.18

DAILY FEED INTAKE

There were no significant differences (P<0.05) between treatments in daily intake of dry matter (D.M.), gross energy (G.E.) or digestible energy (D.E.) (Table 5). The D.M. intake per day was slightly more (5%) for the 10% rapeseed level than for the 15% rapeseed level. Burkitt <u>et al.</u> (1954), Ingalls <u>et al</u>. (1968), and Grenet (1970) reported that consumption decreased when either rapeseed or rapeseed meal was included in the diets of ruminants. Seale (1952), Clark and Bezeau (1964), and Bell and Devin (1972) reported that animals initially rejected rations containing rapeseed meal, but after a period of time consumed as much as with the control rations.

The G.E. and D.E. intakes per day (Table 5) were

slightly higher for the animals receiving the 10 and 15% rapeseed in their diets, as compared to the animals receiving the 0% rapeseed diet. There was a tendency for animals fed molasses or alfalfa to consume more D.M., G.E. and D.E. This could account, in part at least, for improved rates of gain noted earlier.

There were no significant differences in D.M., G.E., or D.E. intakes when ground rapeseed, molasses and alfalfa pellets were fed in combination (Table 6).

Treatment	<pre>% Level of Diet</pre>	D.M. (kg)	Gross Energy (Mcal)	Digestible Energy (Mcal)
Ground Rapeseed	0	5.59 ^a	24.68 ^d	20.22 ^g
Ground Rapeseed	10	5.84 ^a	26.44 ^d	, 22.70 ^g
Ground Rapeseed	15	5.54 ^a	26.58 ^d	21.59 ^g -
Wolasses	0	5.43 ^b	24.65 ^e	20.16 ^h
\ Molasses	5	5.89 ^b	27.15 ^e	22.60 ^h
Alfalfa Pellets	0	5.40 ^C	25.49 ^f	20.47 ⁱ
Alfalfa Pellets	10	5.92 ^C	26.31 ^f	22.29 ⁱ

Table 5. Daily Feed Intake

a,b,c,d,e,f,g,h,i,

Means in each treatment group followed by

a common superscript are not significantly different (P<0.05). FEED UTILIZATION

There were no significant differences (P<0.05) among any of the treatments for D.M. per unit gain and D.E. per unit gain (Table 7). Bell and Devlin (1972) noted steers fed rations containing rapeseed meal were not significantly

(P<0.05) different in feed conversion than steers fed barley alone or with soybean meal in the diet. The 0% rapeseed diet resulted in a lower D.E. per unit gain when compared to the 10 and 15% rapeseed diets. The D.E. per unit gain was slightly better when molasses or alfalfa pellets were included in the diet compared to no molasses or no alfalfa pellets in the diets.

When rapeseed, molasses and alfalfa pellets were in combination, there was no significant interaction (P<0.05) for D.M. per unit gain or D.E. per unit gain (Table 8). APPARENT DIGESTIBILITY

There were no significant differences (P<0.05) in digestion coefficients of dry matter (D.M.), digestible energy (D.E.), crude protein (C.P.) or ether extract (E.E.), as a result of the treatments (Table 9). Ingalls and Waldern (1972) and Bezeau <u>et al</u>. (1960), found digestibilities of the ration components to be the same for rapeseed meal diets as for a control ration containing barley and linseed meal. Albin and Durham (1967) found that the inclusion of fat in the diet did not affect the digestibilities of D.M. and energy, but increased the ether extract digestibility. Esplin <u>et al</u>., (1963) found that 4% vegetable oil in the diet had no effect on digestibility coefficients. Adams <u>et al</u>. (1959a) observed that the addition of vegetable oils to diets of calves decreased digestTable 6. Mean Daily Intake When Ground Rapeseed, Molasses and Alfalfa Pellets were Fed in Combination

			•		
Treatment a	Level of Diet	• _ •	asses 5	Alfalfa 0	Pellets 10
Dry Måtter Rapeseed	0	5.48	5.70	4.96	6.22
Intake (kg)	10	5.43	6.26	5.85	5.84
	15	5.38	5.70	5.38	5.70
Gross Energy Rapeseed	0	23.6	25.7	21.4	27.9
Intake (Mcal)	10	25.1	27.7	27.5	25.4
	15	25.2	27.9	26.6	25.6
Digestible Rapeseed	0	18.4	21.3	17.7	21.9
Energy Intake	10	21.3	24.1	22.8	22.b.
(Mcal)		20.7	22.4	20.9	23.3
			(i) South		المحاجب والمحاجبين المتهور والمح

ibility.

The inclusion of molasses in the diets, compared to no molasses in the diets, resulted in minor increases in the digestibilities of D.M., D.E., C.P. and E.E.

There was no significant (P<0.05) interaction in digestibility of ration components when ground rapeseed, molasses, and alfalfa pellets were fed in combination (Table 10).

Table 7. Feed Utilization

Treatment	<pre>% Level in Diet</pre>	Dry Matter Per Unit Gain	Digestible Energy Per Kg Gain (Mcal)
Ground Rapeseed	0	4.82 ^a	17.43 ^d
Ground Rapeseed	10	4.87 ^a	18.92 ^d
Ground Rapeseed	·15	4.99 ^a •	19.45 ^d
'Molasses	0	5.03 ^b	18.67 ^e
Molasses	5`	4.24 ^b -	16.26 ^e
Alfalfa Pellets	0	4.95 ^C	18.78 ^f
Alfalfa Pellets	10	4.85 ^C	e 18.27 ^f

a,b,c,d,e,f,

Means of each treatment group followed by common superscript are not significantly different (P<0.05).

Table 8. Feed Utilization When Ground Rapeseed, Molasses and Alfalfa Pellets were Fed in Combination

Tr	eatment	<pre>% Level in Diet</pre>	Mola 0	15565 5	Alfalfa 0	Pellets 10
D.M. Per	Rapeseed	0	5.2	4.5	4.6	5.0
Unit Gain		10	4.9	4.8	5.0	4.7
		15	4.9	5.1	5.1	4.8
D.E. Per	Rapeseed	0	17.5	16.8	16.4	17.7
kg Gain		10	19.4	18.5	19.6	18.2
(Mcal)		15	18.8	20.0	20.1	19.7

Ether Extract e 87.4³ 83.8^k 85,1^k 78.7[]] 87.3^J 84.0¹ 84.9⁺ Crude Protein 78.9⁹ 79.59 78.5^h 78.9^h 77.69 77.91 79.4 Digestible Energy 81.3^d 83.1^d 81.3^d 82.5^e 81.2^f 81.4^e 82.61 Dry Matter 80.3^C 80.6^a 82.2^a 81 ³D 80.1^a 81.7^c 80.7^b 1 in Diet 10 Ö 0 ທ ň æ Alfalfa Pellets Ground Rapeseed Ground Rapeseed Ground Rapeseed Alfalfa Pellets Treatment Molasses Molasses

Coefficients of Apparent Digestibility

Table 9.

a.b.c.d.e.f.g.h.i.j.k.l.

Means of each treatment group followed by a common superscript are

not significantly different (P<0.05)

SLAUGHTER AND CARCASS DATA

There were no significant differences (P<0.05) for any of the treatments, in final liveweights, carcass weight, dressing percentage or fat and lean percentages in rib sections (Table 11). There was no significant interaction (P<0.05) when ground rapeseed, molasses and alfalfa pellets were fed in combination.

The animals fed the 10 and 15% ground rapeseed diets had slightly higher (approximately 4%) percentage fat than those receiving 0% ground rapeseed. This was also true for animals fed no molasses.

The incidence of liver abscesses in this study was 25% (6 animals). This coincides with data reported by Foster and Woods (1970), Rowland (1970) and Harvey <u>et al</u>. (1968). They found an average of 22 to 23% liver abscess in slaughter animals that were examined. They also reported the incidence of liver abscesses was higher in cattle fed all-concentrate diets than in cattle fed roughage in their diet.

There was one animal (4%) which had urinary calculi. The rest of the viscera examinations resulted in no discovery of abnormalities.

All the carcasses graded Al or Bl and there was no pattern as to diet. The animals that graded Bl did so because they did not have the minimum amount of fat cover (Canada Department of Agriculture, 1973). Table 10. Coefficients of Apparent Digestibilities When Ground Rapeseed, Molasses and Alfalfa Pellets were Fed in Combination

		8			
Treatment	Ground Rapeseed in Diet	MOL ²	Molasses 5	Alfalfa 0	Pellets
Dry Matter (%)	4	78.1	83.1	.82.7	78.5
	1 0	84.3	80.1	82.4	82.1
	15	7.9.7	80.4	79.9	80.2
Digestible Energy (%)	(\$)	78.3	84.2	83.2	79.3
	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	84.9	81.4	83.1	83.1
	15	. 6.08	81.8	81.6	81.1
Crude Protein (%)	0	75.4	7.67	80 . 3	74.8
		. 8	77.9	1.67	80.0
		78.8	78.9	78.6	79.2
Ether Extract (%)		71.9	85 . 5	86.9	70.4
	10	92.0	82.0	82.5	92.1
	15	87.4	87.4	85.2	89.6

25.8⁰ 27.5^m 26.0^m 23.9^m 24.7ⁿ 25.2ⁿ 25.9⁰ Means of each treatment group followed by a common superscript Rib Section Fat Lean % 75.3^k 72.5 76.1 74.0 74.8' 74.2 74.1 ρρ 58°5⁹ 57.0⁹ 58.0^h 57.8⁹ 57.5ⁿ Dressing 57.8 57.8 (kg) Table 11. Slaughter and Carcass Data 273.6^f 261.2^e 252.0^{f} 261.4^d 260.4^d 264.4^e Carcass Wt. 266.6^d (kg) % in Diet Final Live Wt. 446.0^a 8 8 458.8^b 436.8^C 472.6^C 450.6^D 160.4 are not significantly different (P<0.05) 457 a,b,c,d,e,f,g,h,i,j,k,l,m,n,o, Ground Rapeseed Alfalfa Pellets Ground Rapeseed Ground Rapeseed Alfalfa Pellets Treatment Molasses Molasses

42

DISCUSSION

There were no detrimental effects from including whole-fat ground rapeseed at either 10 or 15% levels in allconcentrate rations that were fed to growing and finishing dairy bulks. In fact, when rapeseed was added to rations without molasses, there was a tendency for improved rates of gain and feed conversion. The work by Dyer, Ensminger and Blue (1957) and Erwin, Dyer and Ensminger (1956) pointed out rate of gain increased at a level of 5% added fat in the ration. The rapeseed rations in the present study added approximately 5% fat at the 15% level of rapeseed. Several researchers have shown that although cattle initially rejected rations containing rapeseed products, they consumed amounts similar to controls after a period of time (Seale, 1952; Clark and Bezeau, 1964; and Bell and Devlin, 1972). Thus, unlike what has been found with poultry and swine (Carroll, 1949; Belzile et al., 1963; and Clandinin et al., 1966) no growth depression due to the goitrogenic effects of rapeseed seemed to occur with the bulls in this study.

The significant (P<0.05) increase in rate of gain when molasses was included in the diet would seem to be due to the increases in daily intake of D.M., G.E. and D.E. In addition, the digestibilities of D.M., D.E., C.P. and E.E. were increased slightly, which would help to account for the increased gain.

The significant (P<0.05) increase in rate of gain

when alfalfa pellets were included in the diet would also seem to be due to increased daily intake for D.M., G.E. and D.E. The dition of alfalfa had no apparent effect on the usefulne data appaced.

O%Description0%Description0%Descriptional.952952ney found efficiency increased as the level

of f

inc

ised.

in inclusion of molasses or alfalfa pellets resulted in implicit feed conversions. This would appear to be related to the preased rate of gain and intakes of D.M. and D.E. The fact that there were no significant differences (P<0.05) of any of the treatments for rib section percentage lean and of the implies that the total body lean and body fat were not significantly (P<0.05) different. Epley <u>et al</u>. (1970), Moody et al. (1970) and Busch et al. (1968) pointed out that

dissection is a fairly accurate measure of the body can and fat. The animals in this study had what seemed to be a higher percentage of lean than what has been found elsewhere (Moon, 1972; Matmberg, 1972). This is not likely due to the diets, but more likely due to the youthfulness of the animal and the breed (Holstein x Brown Swiss).

When calculation by difference was used, (Appendix, Table B), apparent digestible energy coefficients of 93.6 and 80.9% were obtained for the 10 and 15% levels of rapeseed. The average of the two values was 87.2 percent. This would appear to be an apparent digestibility coefficient that could be applied to the gross energy in whole-fat rapeseed. Similar calculations resulted in apparent digestible protein coefficients of 90.2 and 83.5% for the 10 and 15% rapeseed levels, respectively. The average value of 86.8% would appear to be the apparent digestibility coefficient of protein in whole-fat rapeseed. The digestibility of rapeseed appeared to decrease at the 15% level as compared to the 10% level of addition indicating that 10% rapeseed may be a more suitable level of addition.

CONCLUSION

The major overall conclusion that can be drawn from this study is that ground full-fat rapeseed can be used at levels up to 45% in ruminant rations. If available at an economical price as in cases of over-production of rapeseed or in cases when the seed is damaged by frost, the product can be used as feed for ruminants. The use of ground full-fat rapeseed meal at a level of 10% resulted in a slight improvement in overall performance as compared with all-barley rations, and 15% rapeseed did not depress performance as compared with barley alone.

The inclusion of either molasses or alfalfa pellets in all-concentrate rations for dairy bulls resulted in improved rates of gain, feed intake and feed conversion. These effects were more apparent when rapeseed was not included in the diets.

46

BIBLIOGRAPHY

Adams, R. S., J. E. Gander, T. W. Gullickson and J. H. Sautler, 1959a. Some effects of feeding various filled milks to dairy calves: I. Physical condi-. tion and weight gains with special reference to low-fat rations. J. Dairy Sci. 42: 1552-1562.

Adams, R. S., J. E. Gander, T. W. Gullickson and J. H. Sautler, 1959b. II. Fecal characteristics and J. Dairy Sci. 42: 1562-1568. digestibility data.

Adams, R. S., J. E. Gander, T. W. Gullickson and J. H. Sautler, 1959c. III. Blood plasma, tocopherol and vitamin A levels of diet, storage effects and evidence of toxicity. J. Dairy Sci. 42: 1569-1579.

Albin, R. C. and R. M. Durham, 1967. Restricted feeding and use of dehydrated alfalfa meal and beef tallow in all concentrate rations for fattening steers. J. Anim. Sci. 26: 85-88.

Akiba, Y. and T. Masumato, 1972. Thyroid function of chicks after withdrawal of 5-vinyl-2-oxazolidinethione, a goitrogen in rapeseed. Poult. Sci. 52: 562-567.

Appelqvist, L. A. and R. Ohlson (Editors), 1972. Rapeseed cultivation composition processing and utilization. Elseview Publishing Company, Amsterdam, London, New York.

Asplund, J. M., 1961. Rapeseed oil meal for dairy cattle. University of Alberta Press Bull., 40th Feeders' Day: 18-19.

Asplund, J. M., 1962. Rapeseed oil meal for dairy cows on pasture. University of Alberta Press Bull., 41st Annual Feeders' Day, pg. 6.

Association of Official Agricultural Chemists, 1965. Official methods of analysis. 10th Edition, Washington, D.C.

Astwood, E. B., M. A. Greer and M. G. Ettlinger, 1949. L-5vinyl-2-thiooxazolidinethione an antithyroid compound from yellow turnip and brassica seeds. J. Bio. Chem. 181: 121-130.

Bell, J. M. and R. J. Belzile, 1965. Goitrogenic properties in rapeseed meal for livestock and poultry, a re-view Can. Dept. Agr. Pub. 1257: 45-48.

Bell, J. M., 1955. The nutritional value of rapeseed oil meal, a review. Can. J. Agri. Sci. 35: 242-251.

Bell, J. M., 1965. Growth depressing factors in rapeseed meal. VI. Feeding value for growing - finishing swine of myrosinase free, solvent extracted meal. J. Anim. Sci. 24: 1147-1151.

Bell, J. M. and J. J. Devlin, 1972. Rapeseed meal for bedf cattle and sheep. Canadian rapeseed meal in poultry and animal feeding. Rapeseed Assoc. of Canada, Winnipeg, Manitoba. Pub. 16: 21-23.

Bell, J. M., C. G. Youngs and R. K. Downey, 1971. A nutritional comparison of various rapeseed and mustard seed solvent-extracted meals of different glucosinolate composition. Can. J. Anim. Sci. 51: 259-269.

Belzile, R., J. M. Bell and L. R. Wetter, 1963. Growth depressing factors in rapeseed oil mean V. The effects of myrosinase activity on the toxicity of the meal. Can. J. Anim. Sci. 43: 169-173.

Bender, R. C. and L. A. Maynard, 1932. Fat metabolism in lactating goat. J. Dairy Sci. 15: 242.

Bezeau, L. M., S. B. Slen and F. Whiting, 1960. The nutritional value of rapeseed oil meal for lamb and wool production in mature range ewes. Can. J. Anim. Sci. 40: 37-43.

Blakeley, R. M. and R. W. Anderson, 1948. Studies with rapeseed oil cake meal in the diet on the weight of thyroid glands of turkey poults. Sci. Agr. 28: 393-397.

Bouchard, R. and G. T. Brisson, 1970. Tallow versus corn oil in a milk substitute for artificially reared lambs and digestibility of diet constituents. J. Anim. Sci. 31: 804-809.

Bowland, J. P. and J. M. Bell, 1972. Rapeseed meal for pigs. Canadian rapeseed meal in poultry and animal feeding. Rapeseed Assoc. of Canada, Winnipeg, Manitoba. Pub. 16: 16-20.

Bradley, N. W., B. M. Jones Jr., G.E. Mitchell Jr. and C. O. Little, 1966. Fat and urea in finishing rations for steers. J. Anim. Sci. 25: 480-483.

48

Burkitt, W. H., 1951. Apparent digestibility by lambs of grass hay supplemented with rapeseed oil meal for linseed meal. Montana Agr. Exp. Station Circ. 193.

Burkitt, W. H., J. J. Urick, R. M. Williams and F. S. Wilkson, 1954. Rapeseed oil meal and linseed meal as protein supplements for wintering cows and calves, and yearlings. Montana Agr. Exp. Station Bull., 499.

Burr, G. O. and M. M. Burr, 1929. A new deficiency disease produced by the rigid exclusion of fat from the diet. J. Biol. Chem. 82: 345-367.

Burr, G. O. and M. M. Burr, 1930. On the nature and role of the fatty acids essential in nutrition. J. Biol. Chem. 86: 587-621.

Busch, D. A., C. A. Dinkel, D. E. Schafer, H. J. Tuma and B. C. Breidenstein, 1968. Predicting edible portion of beef carcasses from rib separation data. J. Anim. Sci. 27: 351-354.

Carroll, K. K., 1949. Isolation of anti-thyroid compound from rapeseed (Brassica napus). Proc. Soc. Exp. Biol. Med.\ 71: 622-624.

Chandler, P. T., E. M. Kesler and R. D. McCarthy, 1968. Effect of dietary lard on growth and nutrient digestibility by calves 6-15 weeks old. J. Dairy Sci. 51: 1868-1870.

Chomyszym, M. and R. Beza, 1965. Srutarzepakowa micodgoryczonci i odgoryczona w zywionuikrow. Zakt. Hodow Doswiad Zwierzat PAN Biul. No. 9: 71-78. Summary (English) in nutritive value of rapeseed meal.for livestock and poultry - a bibliography 1951-1971. Abstract No. 3536.

Church, D. C. and W. G. Pond, 1974. Basic Animal Nutrition and Feeding. Published by D. C. Church, Albany Printing Co., Albany, Oregon.

Clandinin, D. R., 1961. Effect of sinapin, the bitter substance in rapeseed oil meal, on the growth of chickens. Poult. Sci. 40: 484-491.

Clandinin, D. R., Louise Bayly and Alma Caballero, 1966. Effects of (+) 5-vinyl-3-oxazolidinethione, a goitrogen in rapeseed meal, on rate of growth and thyroid function of chicks. Poult. Sci. 45: 833-837. Clandinin, D. R. and Jean Heard, 1968. Tannins in prepress solvent and solvent processed Rapeseed meal. Poult. Sci. 47: 688.

Clandinin, D. R., R. Renner and A. R. Robblee, 1959. Rapeseed oil meal studies. 1. Effects of variety of rapeseed, growing environment and processing temperatures on the nutritive value and chemical composition of rapeseed oil meal. Poult. Sci. 38: 1367-1372.

Clandinin, D. R., A. R. Robblee and S. J. Slinger, 1972. Rapeseed meal for poultry. Canadian rapeseed meal in poultry and animal feeding. Rapeseed Assoc. of Canada, Winnipeg, Manitoba. Pub. 16: 11-15.

Clark, S. E. and L. M. Bezeau, 1964. Cited in feeding value of rapeseed for ruminant animals by E. Whiting in rapeseed meal for livestock and poultry. A Review: P. 61.

Davison, K. L., 1961. Mineral and fat interrelationships as influencing ration utilization by lambs. Ph.D.
Thesis, Iowa State University of Sci. and Tech., Ames, Iowa, Cited in J. Anim. Sci. 22: 920.

Davison, K. L. and W. Woods, 1963. Calcium and fat interrelationships as influences of performance of fattening lambs. J. Anim. Sci. 22: 919-924.

Downey, R. K., 1965. Rapeseed, botany production and utilization in rapeseed meal for livestock and poultry. A Review CDA Pub. No. 1257: 7-21.

Downey, R. K. and J. L. Bolton, 1961. Can. Dept. Agr. Pub. 1021 cited in rapeseed meal for livestock and poultry. A Review CAn. Dept. Agr. Pub. 1257.

Dyer; I. A., M. E. Ensminger and R. L. Blue, 1957. Effects of fat oxytetracyline and stilbestrol on performance and hepatic stores of carotene and vitamin A in steers. J. Anim. Sci. 16: 828-832.

Epley, R. J., H. B. Hedrick, W. C. Stringer and Hutcheson, 1970. Prediction of weight and percent retail cuts of beef using five carcass measurements. J. Anim. Sci. 31: 872-879.

Esplin, G., W. H. Hale, F. Hubbert Jr. and B. Taylor, 1963. Effect of animal tallow and hydrolyzed vegetable and animal fat on ration utilization and rumen V.F.A. production with fattening steers. J. Anim. Sci. 22: 695-698. Erwin, E. S., I. A. Dyer and M. E. Ensminger, 1956. Effects of chlortetracycline in edible animal fat stilbestrol and high and low quality roughage on performance of yearling steers 1. Feed consumption and rates of gain. J. Anim. Sci. 15: 710-716.

Foster, L. and W. Woods, 1970. Influence of liver abscesses on animal performance (Abstract) 331. J. Anim. Sci. 31: 241.

Grainger, R. B., M. C. Bell, J. W. Stroud and B. Baker, 1961. Effect of various rations and corn oil on crude cellulose digestibility by sheep. J. Anim. Sci. 20: 319-322.

Greer, M. A., 1962. The natural occurrence of goitrogenic agents. Recent Progress in Hormone Res. 18: 187-219.

Grenet, N., 1970. Utilization du tourteau de colze pour . l'alimentation des ruminants. Principaux Journees Internationales sur le colza - Paris, C.E.T.I.D.M.: 542-550.

Grieve, C. M., 1973. RApeseed meal for lactating dairy cows. University of Alberta Press. Bull. 52nd Annual Feeders' Day: 33-34.

Grieve, C. M.; 1974. Rapeseed meal, urea and sour colostrum for dairy calves. University of Alberta Press. Bull. 53rd Annual Feeders' Day: 16-17.

53

Harvey, R. M., M. B. Wise, T. N. Blumer and E. R. Barrick, 1968. Influence of added roughage and chlortetracycline to all concentrate rations for fattening steers. J. Anim. Sci. 27: 1438-1444.

Hatch, C. F., T. W. Perry, M. T. Mohler and W. M. Beeson, 1972. The effect of added fat with graded levels of calcium to urea containing rations for beef cattle. J. Anim. Sci. 34: 483-487.

Homb, T., L. Orud and T. Walden, 1961. Three years trial on feeding ground rapeseed to dairy cattle. Norges Landbruk-shogsk Foringsforsok Beretn. No. 103: 31.

Ingalls, J. R., M. E. Seale, and J. A. McKirdy, 1968. Effect of rapeseed meal and urea on ad libitum consumption of grain rations by dairy cows. Can. J. Anim. Sci. 48: 437-443.

- Ingalls, J. R. and D. E. Waldren, 1972. Rapeseed meal in rations for dairy cattle. Canadian rapeseed meal in poultry and animal feeding. Rapeseed Assoc. of Canada, Winnipeg, Manitoba. Pub. 16: 24-27.
- Jarl, F., 1951. Kungl Lantbruksbog-skolan ach statens Lantbruksforsokstatens Husdzursforsok Meddelonde Nr tieip Sweden. Cited in rapeseed by Appelqvist, L. A. and R. Ohlson. P. 373.
- Johnson, R. R. and K. E. McClure, 1972. High fat rations for ruminants 1. addition of saturated and unsaturated fats to high roughage and high concentrate rations. J. Anim. Sci. 34: 501-509.
- Kennedy, T. H. and H. D. Purves, 1941. Studies on experimental goitre 1. The effect of brassica seed diets on rats. Brit. J. Exp. Pathol. 22: 241-244.
- Klain, G. J., D. C. Hill, H. D. Branion and J. A. Gray, 1956. The value of rapeseed oil and sunflower seed oil meals in chick starter rations. Poult. Sci. 35: 1315-1326.
- Klopfenstein, T. and W. Schneider, 1973. Dehy as roughage in cattle finishing rations. Feedstuffs 45: 52.
- Klosterman, E. W., L. E. Kunkle, O. G. Bentley and W. Burroughs, 1958. Supplements to poor quality hay for fattening cattle. Ohio Agr. Exp. Sta. Res. Bul. 732.
- Lambert, M. R., N. L. Jacobson, R. S. Allen and J. H. Zaletel, 1954. Lipid deficiency in the calf. J. of Nutrition 32: 259-272.
- Latrille, L. L. and R. O. Ferguson, 1968. Effect of lucerne hay, rapeseed oil meal and dried beet pulp in concentrates for calves fed limited amounts of milk. Agric. tec. Chile 28: 74-84.
- MacLeod, G. K. and J. G. Buchanan-Smith, 1972. Digestibility of hydrogenated tallow, saturated fatty acid and soybean oil supplemented diets by sheep. J. Anim. Sci. 35: 890-895.
- Malmberg, M. J., 1972. Protein and energy in fattening rations for Holstein bulls and steers. M.Sc. Thesis, The University of Alberta, Edmonton, Alberta.

Matsumato, T. H. Itoh and Y. Akiba, 1968. Goitrogenic effects of (-) 5-vinyl-2-oxazolidinethione and goitrogen in rapeseed, in growing chicks. Poult. Sci. 47: 1323-1329.

Maynard, L. A. and J. K. Loosli, 1969. Animal Nutrition, McGraw-Hill Book Co. 107-114.

Moody, W. G., J. E. Little Jr., F. A. Thrift, L. V. Crendiff and J. D. Remp, 1970. Influence of length of feeding a high roughage ration on quantitative and qualitative characteristics of beef. J. Anim. Sci. 31: 866-873.

- Moon, R. R., 1972. Protein and energy in rations for fattening Holstein steers. M.Sc. Thesis. The University of Alberta, Edmonton, Alberta.
 - Morrison, F. B., 1958. Feeds and Feeding, abridged. 9th Ed. The Morrison Publishing Company, Ithaca, New York.
 - National Academy of Sciences, 1970. Nutrient requirements of domestic animals. Number 4. Nutrient requirements of beef cattle. 4th Edition, Washington, D.C.
 - National Academy of Sciences, 1971. Nutrient requirements of domestic animals. Number 3. Nutrient requirements of dairy cattle. 4th revised edition. Washington, D. C.
 - Noller, C. H., M. C. Stillons, F. A. Martz and D. L. Hill, 1959. Digestion studies with oat silages using a new fecal collection technique. J. Anim. Sci. 18: 671-674.
 - Nordfeldt, S., 1958. Digestibility and feeding experiments with rapeseed and mustard seed meal of low and high fat content for dairy cows. Kungl Lantbrukshogsk. Husdjursforsok Medd., No. 66, P. 38. English summary in nutritive value of rapeseed for livestock and poultry. A bibliography covering the period 1951-1971.
 - Olomu, J. M., 1974. Evaluation of rapeseed and rapeseed meal as energy and protein sources for chickens. Ph.D. Thesis, The University of Alberta, Edmonton, Alberta.
 - Parham, A. P., R. W. Colby and J. K. Riggs, 1950. The influence solvent extracted and hydraulic processed cottonseed meals upon performance and level of plasma, carotene, vitamin A and fat in blood of wintering cows. J. Anim. Sci. 9: 560.

Roberts, W. K. and J. A. McKirdy, 1964. Weight gains, carcass fat characteristics and ration digestibility in steers as affected by dietary rapeseed oil, sunflower seed oil and animal tallow. J. Anim. Sci. 23: 682-687.

Rowland, A. C., 1970. The Rumenitis and liver abscess complex and vitamin A status in beef cattle. Anim. Prod. 12: 291-298.

Russell, A. J. F., 1967. A note on goitre in lambs grazing on rape (Brassica napus). Anim. Prod. 9: 131-133.

Russell, W. C., M. W. Taylor, M. A. Walker and L. J. Polskin, 1942. The absorption and retention of carotene and vitamin A by hens of normal and low-fat rations. J. Nutrition 24: 199-211.

Schwarze, P., 1948. Uber ben deterstoff der rapssamen. Die Naturwissenschaften. 36: 88-89.

Scott, M. L., 1953. Use of molasses in feeding of farm animals, Tech. Dept. Series 9. Sugar Research Foundation, New York.

Seale, M. E., 1952. University of Manitoba 2nd Annual Livestock Day Rep. P. 1 cited in rapeseed meal for livestock and poultry. A Review Can. Dept. of Agr. Pub. 1257: 64.

Thompson, J. T., N. W. Bradley and C. O. Little, 1967. Utilization of urea and fat in meal and pelleted rations for steers. J. Anim. Sci. 26: 830-835.

Van Etten, C. H., M. E. Daxenbichler, J. E. Peters and H. L. Tookey, 1966. Seed meal hydrolysis. Variation in enzymatic degradation products from the major thioglucosides in <u>Crambe obyssinica</u> and <u>Brassica napus</u> seed meals. J. Agr. Food Chem. 14: 426-430.

Virtanen, A. I., M. Kreula and Z. Kiezvaara, 1963. Cited in 'rapeseed' by Appelqvist and Ohlson. p. 373.

Vohra; Pran, F. H. Kratzer and M. A. Joslyn, 1966. The growth depressing and toxic effects of tannins to chicks. Poult., Sci. 45: 135-142.

Ward, J. K., C. W. Tefft, R. J. Sirny, H. N. Edwards and A. D. Tillman, 1957. Further studies concerning the effect of alfalfa ash upon the utilization of lowquality roughages by ruminant animals. J. Anim. Sci. 16: 633-641. Weingardt, R., 1973. Analysis of variance C. S. 2384 (*ANOFPR). University of Alberta Computing Services, Edmonton, Alberta.

- Welch, J. G., 1962. The effect of feeding milk replacers with varying amounts of fat in hot house lamb productions. J. Anim. Sci. 21: 141 (Abstract).
- Wetter, L. R. and B. M. Craig, 1959. Varietal and environmental effects on rapeseed 1, Isothiocyanate and thioxazolidon content. Can. J. Plant. Sci. 39: 395-399.

۰. ۵

- Whiting, F., 1965. Feeding value of rapeseed meal for ruminant animals in rapeseed meal for livestock on poultry. A Review. Can. Dept. Agr. Pub. 1257: 61-68.
- Willey, N. B., J. R. Riggs, Colby, O. D. Butlet and R. Reiser, 1952. The influence of level of fat and energy in the ration upon feedlot performance and carcass composition of fattening steers. J. Anim. Sci. 11: 705-711.
- Witt, M., F. W. Huth and W. Hartman, 1959. Rapeseed meal a valuable feed stuff for dairy cattle. Ztschr. Tierphysiol. Trerernahrung Futtermittelk. 14: 175-185. English summary in nutritive value of rapeseed meal. A bibliography 1951-1971. Abstract No. 1263.

Wise, M. B., T. N. Bluner and E. R. Barrick, 1963. Influence of urea, fat and alfalfa meal on performance, rumen epithelium and livers of steers fed all concentrate diets. J. Anim. Sci. 22: 849. (Abstract).

5.5

Appendix

Mean Squares Obtained by Analysis of Variance Table A. 3

Variable	Source of Variation	Degrees of Freedom	Mean Squares
Average Daily Gain	Rapeseed	2	0.018579
	Molasses	ī	0.11620
	M x R	2	0.025279
	Pellets	ī	0.097538
	PxR	2	0.001462
	РхМ	1	0.037604
	RXMXP	• 2	0.002039
	Error	12	0.034304
	, Total	. 23	
D.E. Per Gain	Rapeseed	2	10.520
	Molasses	1	2.5807
	M x R	2	4.7259
	Pellets	1 2	2.7135
	PXR	2	1.8988
	P x M .	1	8,6760
	R x M x P	2	2.2723
	Error Total	12 23	19.247
D.M. Per Gain	Rapeseed	2 •	0.046667
	Molasses 🍨	1	0.88167
	M x R	2 •	0.87167
	Ýellets	1	0.16667
	P x R	2 1	. 0.081666
	P x M		0.80667
	R x M x P	2	0.44667
	Error	12	2.1408
	Total	23	
방법 중 문서 가슴 힘을 만들고 말했.			

56

V			
Variație	Source of Variation	Degrees of Freedom	f Mean. Squares
Dressing Percent	Rapeseed. Molasses M x R Pellets	, 2 1 2 1	4.9880 1.5505 3.1703 0.0004169
	P x R P x M R x M x P Error	2 1 2 12	1.0329 3.3004 .15542 19.932
Final Weight	Total Rapeseed, Molasses	23 2 1 2	468.79 408.38 270.13
	M x R Pellets P x R P x M R x M x P	1 2 1 2 1	379.13 7668.4 2344.6 126,04 176.8
Corrector Modernt	Error Total	12 23	3297.3
Carcass Weight	Rapeseed Molasses M x R Pellets P x R	2 1/ 2 1 2	90.167 63.375 243.50 2795.0 576.17
	M x P R x M x P Error Total	1 2 12 23	165.37 406.50 1600.1
D.M. Digestibility	Rapeseed Molasses M x R	2	9.9957 1.8097 42.159
	Pellets P x R M x P R x M x P		11.971 11.765 3.9611 7.6551
Ether Extract	Error Total Rapeseed	12 23 2	38.700 198.96
Digestibility	Molasses M x R Pellets P x R P x M	1 2 1 2 1 2	10.245 276.83 4.2841 380.28 101.85
	R x M x P Error Total	2 12 23	45.02 93.82

5<u>7</u>

				58
	Ş		•	
* Variable	Source of Variation	Degrees of Freedom	Mean Squares	
D.M., Intake per Day	Rapeseed Molasses M x R Pellets P x R P x M R x M x P Error Total	2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 12 23	0.206 1.265 0.21153 1.6380 0.88699 2.4130 0.40268 1.4856	
Lean Percentage	Rapeseed Molasses M x R Pellets R x P P x M R x M x P Error Total	2 1 2	25.613 32.667 44.400 0.08167 13.528 35.042 22.400 17.277	
Fat Percentage	Rapeseed Molasses M x R Pellets R x P P x M R x M x P Error Total	2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 12 23	25.613 32.667 44.400 0.08167 13.528 35.042 22.400 17.277	
D.E. Intake per Day	Rapeseed Molasses M x R Pellets P x R P x M R x M x P Error Total	2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 12 23	16.473 35.697 0.94190 19.966 49.407 2.4067 20.775 13.193	
G.E. Intake per Day	Rapeseed Molasses M x R Pellets P x R P x M R x M x P Error Total	2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 12 23	8.9427 37.350 0.25788 3.9691 49.407 2.4067 20.775 30.724)

• .• •

Variable	Source of Variation	Degrees of Freedom	Mean Squares
D.E. Digestibility	Rapeseed Molasses M x R Pellets P x R P x M R x M x P Error Total	2 1 2 1 2 1 2 12 23	9.067 7.2269 44.055 12.804 8.8093 1.8648 8.9500 38.579
C.P. Digestibility	Rapeseed Molasses M x R Pellets P x R P x M R x M x P Error Total	2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 12 23	7.9518 1.1268 27.806 11.179 25.730 1.0334 8.5762 43.041
		9	

e. •

• 59

Appendix

Table B. Calculations of Apparent Digestible Coefficients of Energy and Protein, in Whole-Fat Rapeseed.

	Average Gross Energies of Rations (Mcal)	Average Digestible Energies of the rations Mcal	Average Crude Protein o Rations (Average Digestible f Protein of %) Ration (%)
0% Rapeseed	4.44	3.61	13.47	
10% Rapeseed	4.67	3.88	14.26	11.34
15% Rapeseed	4.80	3.90	14.79	11.67
	Amount Supplie in Ra	d by Barley tion	►Amount Su	pplied by Barley in Ration
	G.E. (Mcal)	D.E. (Mcal)	C.P. (%)	D.C.P. (%)
10% Rapeseed Ration	3.99	3.25	12.12	9.41
15% Rapeseed Ration	3.77	3.07	11.45	8. 88
Differences				, , , ,
	G.E. (Mcal) •	D.E. (Mcal)	C.P. %	D.C.P. %
10% Rapeseed	.67	•63	2.14	1.93
L5% Rapeseed	1.03	• 83	3.34	2.79

60

.

Thus:

Energy

.1 kg rapeseed contains .674 Mcal of G.E., .631 Mcal of D.E. 1 kg rapeseed contains 6.74 Mcal of G.E., 6.31 Mcal of D.E. $\frac{6.31}{6.74} \times 100 = 93.6$ % digestible

.15 kg rapeseed contains 1.026 Mcal of G.E. and .83 Mcal of D.E. 1 kg rapeseed contains 6.84 Mcal of G.E. and 5.53 Mcal of D.E.

 $\frac{5.53}{6.84}$ x 100 = 80.9% digestible

Average = 87.2% digestible

<u> Protein</u>

In the 10% rapeseed ration, 10 kg rapeseed supplies 2.14 kg C.P. and 1.93 kg D.C.P.

Digestibility of C.P. = $\frac{1.93}{2.14} \times 100 = 90.2$ %

In the 15% rapeseed ration, 15 kg rapeseed supplies 3.34 kg C.P. and 2.79 kg D.C.P.

Digestibility of C.P. = $\frac{2.79}{3.34}$ x 100 = 83.5% Average digestibility = 86.8%

A	P	P	E	N	D	ĪΧ	
---	---	---	---	---	---	----	--

Table C. Data of Performance of Individual Animals

			<u></u>	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
Level of Rapeseed Level of Molasses Level of Alfalfa		0 0 0		0 5) 0		0 0 10		0 5 10
Bull No.	209	247	238	220	230	229	239	218
Initial Wt., kg Initial Age, Days Days on Test Daily Gain, kg D.M./Day, kg D.M./Unit Gain	339 280 181 0.70 5.6 8.0	127 91 196 1.35 5.2 3.9	79 69 288 1.15 4.0 3.5	233 199 181 1.14 5.0 4.4	194 166 288 1.04 5.0 ⁾ 4.8	218 177 237 1.12 6.1 5.4	68 53 288 1.29 5.2 4.0	288 241 181 1.49 8.6 5.8
Level of Rapeseed Level of Molasses Level of Alfalfa	•	10 0 0		10 5 0		10 0 10		10 5 10
Bull No.	231	228	240	217	245	210	235	225
Initial Wt., kg Initial Age, Days Days on Test Daily Gain, kg D.M./Day, kg D.M./Unit Gain	164 162 288 1.15 5.6 4.9	181 178 237 1.01 5.4 5.4	90 62 260 1.15 4.4 3.8	1.31 7.9	92 91 203 1.33 4.7 3.5	330 277 181 0.94 6.0 6.4	136 119 288 1.36 6.2 4.6	186 201 181 1.38 6.6 4.8
Level of Rapeseed Level of Molasses Level of Alfalfa		15 0 0		15 5 0	?	15 0 10		15 5 10
Bull No.	244	214	234	226	233	227	241	\ 215
Initial Wt., kg Initial Age, Days Days on Test Daily Gain, kg D.M./Day, kg D.M./Unit Gain	111 92 203 1.24 4.5 3.6	308 262 181 0.93 6.4 6.9	132 120 288 0.97 4.5 4.6	210 181 237 1.02 6.0 5.9	136 124 288 1.11 5.3 4.8	270 180 237 1.13 5.2 4.6	86 56 260 1.35 5.5 4.1	278 247 181 1.11 6.8 6.1